
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
October 19, 2015 

7:00 P.M. – Regular Meeting  
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of October 5, 2015 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a) Report from the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
b) Report from MPIC regarding their support of a Multi Family Building inspection program 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
a) Financial update 
b) Recognition of Tom Farrell for being selected for a 2015 “Helping Hand” award from 

Access Health 
c) Notice of MDOT public meeting on proposed replacement of the New Meadows Bridge 
d) Announcement of Captain Fitzgerald Recreation and Conservation Area prescribed burn 
e) Election and absentee ballot reminder 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
105. The Town Council will public comments on a “Resolution Amending the 2015-16 

Budget to Appropriate $136,481 for the Purpose of Funding the Vehicle and Equipment 
Reserve Funds,” and may take action at least 10 days after the hearing.  (Manager) 

HEARING 
 
TABLED ITEM 
 
100. The Town Council will discuss the draft “Social Services Funding Policy,” and 

determine if any future action is required.  (Councilor Perreault, Councilor Harris, and 
Councilor K. Wilson)  

DISCUSSION 
 



2 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
106. The Town Council will hear a report regarding a single use bag fee and a ban on 

Styrofoam containers, and will determine if any future action is required. (Councilor K. 
Wilson and Councilor Walker) 

DISCUSSION 
 
107. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for November 2, 2015, on 

amendments to the General Assistance Maximums, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) 

ACTION 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 
  



3 
 

Brunswick Town Council Agenda 
October 19, 2015 

Council Notes and Suggested Motions 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of October 5, 2015: A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public.  There will be two Committee reports given as listed below. 
 
a) Report from the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee: The committee has requested 

to present a report to the Council, highlighting their activities over the past year. 
b) Report from MPIC regarding their support of a Multi Family Building inspection program:  

The Committee will indicate their endorsement of this inspection program, to be included in 
the FY2017 Fire Department budget request. 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
a) Financial update:  Manager Eldridge will update the Council on the Town’s financial picture 

to date for the current fiscal year.  Copies of financial reports are included in your packet. 
b) Recognition of Tom Farrell for being selected for a 2015 “Helping Hand” award from 

Access Health:  This item is to recognize Mr. Farrell for receiving this award.  State 
Representative Ralph Tucker presented this award at a recent Recreation Commission 
meeting for Mr. Farrell’s work to update and strengthen the tobacco free parks resolution to 
include all e-cigarette products. 

c) Notice of MDOT public meeting on proposed replacement of the New Meadows Bridge:  
This item is to inform the public of this meeting to be held on October 29th at 6:00 p.m. at 
Brunswick Town Hall.  A copy of the MDOT notice is included in your packet. 

d) Announcement of Captain Fitzgerald Recreation and Conservation Area prescribed burn:  
This item is to let citizens know that this burn will occur sometime in the next four weeks, 
when weather conditions permit.  Tom Farrell will provide additional information at your 
meeting. 

e) Election and absentee ballot reminder:  Town Clerk Fran Smith will remind citizens that 
absentee ballots are now available for the November 3rd Election.  They will be available 
upon request or to vote in person up to Thursday, October 29th, with the office open until 
7:00 p.m. that evening.  All voting on Election Day will be at the junior high school, 65 
Columbia Avenue, with the polls open 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 

 
  



4 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
105. This item is the required public hearing on this budget amendment, a “Resolution 

Amending the 2015-16 Budget to Appropriate $136,481 for the Purpose of Funding the 
Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds.” The funding is coming from a refund from 
Maine PERS.  Action cannot be taken at this meeting, and it will come back at your next 
meeting.   Copies of memos from Manager Eldridge and the draft resolution are included 
in your packet. 
 
(Town Charter, Section 504 Adoption and amendment of the budget states the following 
regarding budget amendments: “Upon the recommendation of the Town Manager, the 
Town Council may amend the budget. The Council shall hold a public hearing at least 
10 days prior to the adoption of any amendment. Any amendment that seeks to increase 
the amount of the total budget appropriations for the year shall only be made from 
unappropriated available revenue.”) 

 
Suggested motion: 
No action can be taken on this item until at least ten days after the public hearing, as 
required by the Town Charter. 

 
TABLED ITEM 
 
100. This item was tabled at your last meeting due to the late hour.  It is for the Council to 

discuss the draft “Social Services Funding Policy,” as prepared by the Social Services 
Committee, consisting of Councilor Perreault, Councilor Harris, and Councilor K. 
Wilson.  They have met several times and drafted a policy and application for the 
Council’s feedback.  The Committee chose to recommend limiting grant funds to 
agencies that provide food, clothing, or shelter.  With the difficult fiscal times, they also 
recommend that funding be limited to a total of $20,000 per fiscal year.  Copies of a 
memo, the draft policy, and application are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
This is a discussion item, with the Council providing guidance for future action, if any. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
106. This item is sponsored by Councilor K. Wilson and Councilor Walker and is for the 

Council to hear a report regarding a single use bag fee and a ban of Styrofoam 
containers.  The report was prepared by the Bring Your Own Bag (BYOB) group and 
was presented to the Recycling and Sustainability Committee on September 24.  There is 
no expected action at this time, but a chance for the Council to hear the information for 
possible future Council action.  A copy of the report is included in your packet. 
 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required as this is a discussion item. 

 
107. This item is to set a public hearing for November 2, 2015, to change the current General 

Assistance maximums, as required by state law.  This is the annual adoption of the 
limits, with changes to GA overall and housing maximums.  Copies of a memo and 
current and proposed Overall Maximum levels are included in your packet. 



5 
 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to set a public hearing for November 2, 2015, on amendments to the General 
Assistance Maximums. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 

 

Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
October 5, 2015 

Executive Session – 6:15 P.M. 
Regular - 7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 

Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, 
and John Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk; Steve 

Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Dan Devereaux, Marine Resources 
Officer/Harbor Master; Julie Henze, Finance Director; Linda Smith, 
Business Development Manager; Terry Goan, Police Officer; and TV 
video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call and acknowledged that 
the meeting was properly noticed. 
 
Executive Session: Consultation with legal counsel regarding MRRA versus Town of 
Brunswick [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] and a personnel matter [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A)] 
 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Harris seconded, to go into executive session for 
Consultations with legal counsel regarding MRRA versus Town of Brunswick per 1 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E) and a personnel matter 1 M.R.S.A §405(6)(A).  The motion carried 
with nine (9) yeas. 
 
MEETING RESUMES 
 
Chair Brayman resumed the meeting and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda:  
 

 To add item 104 and to do this item prior to the public hearings  
 To take up item 101 immediately following item 104 
 To add an executive session regarding union negotiations, at the end of the meeting  
 To move item 100 to the last action item, with the possibility it will be tabled until the 

next meeting 
 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
October 5, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 

CONSENT AGENDA (This item was discussed at 7:05 p.m.) 
a) Approval of the Minutes of September 21, 2015 
b) Appointment of Fran Smith as Warden and Elin Gould, Sara King, and Joe Zrioka 

as Deputy Wardens for the November 3, 2015 Election 
c) Approval of the Election Warrant for November 3, 2015  
d) Appointment of the Voter Registration Appeals Board 

 
Councilor Millett requested item CA-b be voted on separately from the rest of the Consent 
Agenda. 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to approve the Consent 
Agenda Items a, c, and d.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve Consent Agenda 
Item b.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Millett was opposed. 
 
(A copy of Item CA-c, the Election Warrant, will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Public Comments  
 
Rudi Smith, Mast Lane, provided a letter regarding his support of Solarize Brunswick.   
 
(A copy the letter will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:10 p.m.) 
 
Chair Brayman announced a Spindleworks event at the Curtis Memorial Library on October 6th.  
She also spoke of the success of a local company, Terra Speakers, that upgraded a cathedral sound 
system where the Pope held Mass during his recent visit to the United States.  
 
Committee Reports  (This item was discussed at 7:14 p.m.)  
 
Reports were given on the following: Recycling and Sustainability Committee, Regional 
Shellfish Group, and the Cumberland County Finance Committee. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
a) Update on Solarize Brunswick (This item was discussed at 7:23 p.m.) 
 
Linda Smith, Business Development Manager, spoke regarding this item.  She responded to 
questions from Councilor Millett. 
 
Councilor Richardson and Councilor Walker spoke regarding this item.  
 
b) Sewer District Election update (This item was discussed at 7:32 p.m.)      
 
Lenny Blanchette, from the Sewer District, provided this update. 



Town Council Minutes 
October 5, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 

 
c) Absentee ballot reminder (This item was discussed at 7:34 p.m.) 
 
Town Clerk Fran Smith spoke regarding this item. 
 
d) Discussion of CIP process for upcoming budget year (This item was discussed at 7:35 

p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
e) River Road update (This item was discussed at 7:36 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
f) (ADDED) Reminder of Fire Prevention Open House (This item was discussed at 7:39 

p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
97. The Town Council will hear public comments on applications for Special 

Amusement Licenses, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) (This item 
was discussed at 7:55 p.m.)      
 
Special Amusement 
AKI, LLC 
D/B/A: AKI Japanese Cuisine   Tina & Laura Cigri/V. Ly & B Liu 
94 Maine Street 
 
Frontier Group 
D/B/A: Frontier     Michael Gilroy 
14 Maine Street  
 
Nelson Moody 
D/B/A: Yankee Lanes    Nelson Moody 
276 Bath Road 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Fran Smith spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
October 5, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 

Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to approve the following 
applications for Special Amusement Licenses: AKI Japanese Cuisine, located at 94 Maine 
Street; Frontier, located at 14 Maine Street; and Yankee Lanes, located at 276 Bath Road.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
98. The Town Council will hear public comments for “An Ordinance Authorizing the 

Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water System at 
Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any 
other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and 
Notes in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any 
Additional Appropriation Authorized Hereunder,” and will take any appropriate 
action.  (Manager)  (RESCHEDULED FROM SEPTEMBER 21st MEETING)  (This 
item was discussed at 7:57 p.m.)      

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Paul Caron, Facilities Director for School Department, and Michael O’Brien, Siemen’s, made 
a presentation. 
 
Paul Perzanoski spoke regarding this item. 
 
School staff responded to questions from Councilor Millett, Councilor Watson, Councilor 
Perreault, Councilor Harris, Councilor Richardson, Chair Brayman, Councilor S. Wilson and 
Councilor Walker.  
 
The following members of the public spoke on this item: 

 Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street,  
 Richard Ellis, 231 Adams Road and School Board member 
 Sue Stableford, 12 Larkspur Lane 

 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
MOTION 1 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to suspend the Council rules 
to vote on this item tonight.  The motion carried with six (6) yeas. Councilor Millett, 
Councilor Harris, and Councilor Perreault were opposed. 
 
MOTION 2 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adopt “An Ordinance 
Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water System 
at Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any 
other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes 
in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional 
Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”   



Town Council Minutes 
October 5, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 

 
A Council discussion on the motion was held with Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor K. Wilson, 
Councilor Millett, Councilor Harris, Councilor Richardson, Councilor Walker, Councilor 
Perreault, Councilor Watson, and Chair Brayman speaking. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION 2 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to adopt “An Ordinance 
Authorizing the Replacement and Upgrade of the Boiler and Domestic Hot Water System 
at Brunswick High School, With Total Project Costs Not to Exceed $575,000 (plus any 
other costs authorized hereunder), and Further Authorizing Issuance of Bonds and Notes 
in an Amount not to Exceed $575,000 (plus cost of issuance), plus any Additional 
Appropriation Authorized Hereunder.”  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas.  Councilor 
Harris and Councilor Millett were opposed. 
 
Councilor Richardson left the meeting after the vote on this item. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
99. The Town Council will consider a recommendation from the Rivers and Coastal 

Waters Commission regarding setting mooring fees in the amount of $25 for 
resident, private, commercial, or rental moorings, and $50 for nonresidents, and will 
take any appropriate action.  (Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Walker) (This 
item was discussed at 9:30 p.m.)   

 
Councilor Walker and Councilor S. Wilson introduced this item. 
 
Mark Worthing, Chair of RCWC, spoke regarding this item, and responded to questions from 
Councilor Millett and Councilor Harris.  
 
Councilor K. Wilson, Councilor Millett, Councilor Perreault, Chair Brayman, and Councilor 
Watson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to direct staff to draft ordinance 
amendments to reflect the original staff proposal ($50 - resident, $100 – nonresident, $15 
commercial moorings, and $25 residential mooring field).   
 
After discussion, Councilor Walker and Councilor Watson withdrew the motion. 
 
100. The Town Council will discuss the draft “Social Services Funding Policy,” and 

determine if any future action is required.  (Councilor Perreault, Councilor Harris, 
and Councilor K. Wilson)  

 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to table this item.  The motion  
carried with eight (8) yeas.   
 



Town Council Minutes 
October 5, 2015 
Page 6 
 

 

101. The Town Council will consider adopting “A Resolution Authorizing an 
Appropriation and Grant of up to $200,000 from Available Tax Increment 
Financing Proceeds to the Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority,” and will 
take any appropriate action. (Councilor Watson, Councilor Perreault, and 
Councilor Harris) (This item was discussed at 7:46 p.m.)      

 
This item was discussed after Item 104 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Watson and Councilor Perreault spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Millett asked a question, to which Mr. Blanchette responded. 
 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adopt “A Resolution 
Authorizing an Appropriation and Grant of up to $200,000 from Available Tax Increment 
Financing Proceeds to the Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority.”  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
102. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for October 19, 2015, on a 

“Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Budget to Appropriate $136,481 for the Purpose 
of Funding the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds,” and to adopt “An Order 
Authorizing the Town Manager to Execute a Contract for the Purchase of a 
Sidewalk Tractor,” and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) (This item was 
discussed at 10:02 p.m.)      

 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to set a public hearing for October 
19, 2015, on “Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Budget to Appropriate $136,481 for the 
Purpose of Funding the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds”  and adopt “An Order 
Authorizing the Town Manager to Execute a Contract for the Purchase of a Sidewalk 
Tractor.”  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
103. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) (This 
item was discussed at 10:10 p.m.)      

 
Councilor Millett made the following nominations: 

 Village Review Board - Karen Topp 
 Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation Committee  - Lori 

Bourgeois as Downtown Business Owner  
 Zoning Board of Appeals - Robert Thompson  

 
The Council supported these nominations unanimously. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
October 5, 2015 
Page 7 
 

 

104. (ADDED) The Town Council will consider adopting “An Order Authorizing the 
Town Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Agreement with the MidCoast 
Regional Redevelopment Authority to Settle Litigation,” and will take any 
appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 7:40 p.m.)      

 
(This item was done prior to the Public Hearings.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item.   
 
Steve Levesque, Executive Director of MRRA, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Richardson seconded, to adopt "An Order Authorizing 
the Town Manager to Execute a Memorandum of Agreement with the MidCoast Regional 
Redevelopment Authority to Settle Litigation.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the agreement and order will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(ADDED) Executive Session: Union Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)] 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to go into executive session 
regarding union negotiations per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D).   The motion carried with eight (8) 
yeas. 
 
Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion passed with eight (8) yeas.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES. THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
Frances Smith 
Town Clerk 
October 9, 2015 
 

October 19, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 
 

______________ 
Council Chair 



 
 

 
Committee Reports – A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
Committee Reports - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 
 
 
 
 
  

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
DOWNTOWN BRUNSWICK AND OUTER PLEASANT STREET CORRIDOR 

MASTER PLAN IMPLEMENTATION COMMITTEE 
 

85 UNION STREET, BRUNSWICK, ME  04011 

 

 
 

 

Margo Knight, Chair 
Citizen-at-Large 
 
 
Jane Millett 
Councilor – District 6 
 
 
Kathy Wilson 
Councilor – At Large 
 
 
Paul Dostie  
Resident - Downtown 
 
 
Debora King, Vice Chair 
BDA Member 
 
 
Laurie Bourgeois 
Business Owner - Downtown  
 
 
Crystal Card 
Creative Economy/Non-profit 
 
 
Toby Tarpinian 
Citizen at Large 
 
 
Vacant 
Resident – Pleasant Street 
 
 
Vacant 
Business Owner – Pleasant Street 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

October 14, 2015 
 
To:    Brunswick Town Council 
    John S. Eldridge, CPFO, Town Manager 
From:    Margo Knight, Chair 
Subject:  Multi‐Unit Housing Inspection Recommendation by the Downtown 

Brunswick and Outer Pleasant Street Corridor Master Plan 
Implementation Committee (MPIC) 

 
From the Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Corridor Master Plan, adopted January 
2011:  

"Recognizing that poorly maintained housing puts life and property at risk and 
diminishes value for the Town, its residents, and businesses alike, a town‐wide 
inspection program of all structures with two or more rental units should be 
implemented. " 

 
The MPIC raised this recommendation for discussion this year, in large part because of 
the tragic fire in Portland and that city's response to it.  In essence, the city was spurred 
to act to address this issue because of the loss of life.  This motivated our Committee to 
do the same.  
 
We dusted off a plan that the Fire Department submitted to the Town Council in 2011 
and invited Deputy Chief Jeff Emerson and Code Enforcement Officer, Jeff Hutchinson to 
our meetings in June and August.  A property owner spoke to the issue at our June 
meeting, which helped give us perspective on the recommendation.  Deputy Chief 
Emerson reported that the original recommendation:  to hire one person to inspect the 
multi‐unit residences (defined in the safety code as those with three or more units, not 
two as addressed in the Master Plan) and to fund the position by fees paid by the 
property owners.  This recommendation is the same in execution, if not size, to the 
recommendation recently adopted by the Portland City Council. 
 
At our meeting in August, the MPIC voted unanimously to endorse that the Brunswick 
Fire Department include this position and funding for the program in their FY2017 
budget request.  At our September meeting, we discussed the fees again and 
recommended that the Fire Department use their discretion in creating a fee structure 
that takes into consideration the inspection requirements based on a property's units 
and infrastructure. 
 
The Implementation Committee requests the Council's favorable consideration during 
budget deliberations of this request by the Brunswick Fire Department. 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 
 

10/08/2015 08:53    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |SEPTEMBER 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 03
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,368,236   1,418,236   1,418,236.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Fill                          1,368,236   1,418,236   1,418,236.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      583,769     583,769     101,184.49      35,853.52            .00     482,584.51   17.3%
11100 Finance Department      710,161     710,161     155,573.75      55,943.68         476.56     554,110.69   22.0%
11150 Technology Services Dept      363,164     363,164     119,354.53       9,736.46      60,529.48     183,279.99   49.5%
11200 Municipal Officers       85,665      85,665       3,540.31         942.01            .00      82,124.69    4.1%
11210 Munic Bldg - 85 Union      214,863     214,863      35,940.77       9,806.96      19,070.91     159,851.32   25.6%
11220 Munic Bldg - 28 Federal            0           0          62.80          62.80            .00         -62.80  100.0%
11230 Risk Management      479,057     479,057     129,906.50       5,145.79      78,332.50     270,818.00   43.5%
11240 Employee benefits            0           0     -64,156.10    -168,533.71            .00      64,156.10  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       61,298      61,298      12,325.16       5,148.58         702.36      48,270.48   21.3%
11300 Assessing      295,863     295,863      57,030.00      20,723.79       3,832.20     235,000.80   20.6%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      363,719     363,719      71,859.99      28,331.59       7,231.25     284,627.76   21.7%
11900 Planning Department      480,995     480,995      86,350.07      34,593.44            .00     394,644.93   18.0%
11950 Economic Development Dept      115,106     115,106      23,688.10       7,973.86      -1,620.00      93,037.90   19.2%

 
TOTAL General Government            3,753,660   3,753,660     732,660.37      45,728.77     168,555.26   2,852,444.37   24.0%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    3,154,491   3,154,491     650,530.24     261,097.17      29,164.18   2,474,796.58   21.5%
12150 Central Fire Station       59,158      59,158       6,755.74       1,653.17       1,767.78      50,634.48   14.4%
12160 Emerson Fire Station       49,328      49,328       9,512.96       1,792.40       9,940.79      29,874.25   39.4%
12200 Police Department    3,836,175   3,836,175     766,078.51     263,696.86         300.00   3,069,796.49   20.0%
12210 Police Special Detail            0           0      19,164.05      17,178.18            .00     -19,164.05  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatch      812,214     812,214     162,053.44      62,522.09       1,245.00     648,915.56   20.1%
12250 Police Station Building      101,431     101,431      19,192.09      11,964.87       2,513.00      79,725.91   21.4%
12310 Streetlights      211,000     211,000      48,524.60      16,282.06         900.00     161,575.40   23.4%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600       6,476.75       2,637.25            .00      25,123.25   20.5%
12330 Hydrants      465,000     465,000       4,200.95            .00            .00     460,799.05     .9%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedness        2,000       2,000         480.00            .00            .00       1,520.00   24.0%

 
TOTAL Public Safety                 8,722,397   8,722,397   1,692,969.33     638,824.05      45,830.75   6,983,596.92   19.9%

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

10/08/2015 08:53    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |SEPTEMBER 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 03
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 
13100 Public Works Administration      446,577     446,577      89,370.69      32,688.95            .00     357,206.31   20.0%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,713,865   1,713,865     250,406.08      93,841.69      42,865.38   1,420,593.54   17.1%
13130 Refuse Collection      611,556     611,556     115,160.26      46,853.83     303,081.54     193,314.20   68.4%
13140 Recycling      298,631     298,631      47,479.86      23,834.93     239,276.14      11,875.00   96.0%
13150 PW Central Garage      724,112     724,112     142,175.66      49,277.79      11,279.07     570,657.27   21.2%

 
TOTAL Public Works                  3,794,741   3,794,741     644,592.55     246,497.19     596,502.13   2,553,646.32   32.7%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      169,994     169,994      37,330.27      19,562.27         464.32     132,199.41   22.2%
14120 Health & Social Services       12,766      12,766      18,378.25            .00            .00      -5,612.25  144.0%

 
TOTAL Human Services                  182,760     182,760      55,708.52      19,562.27         464.32     126,587.16   30.7%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   36,525,855  36,525,855   4,605,180.12   2,647,425.54            .00  31,920,674.88   12.6%

 
TOTAL Education                    36,525,855  36,525,855   4,605,180.12   2,647,425.54            .00  31,920,674.88   12.6%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      439,700     439,700      95,829.70      31,761.17            .00     343,870.30   21.8%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      699,391     699,391     141,317.74      46,193.05       3,935.58     554,137.68   20.8%
15250 Rec Building 211      173,982     173,982       5,420.24         466.68       3,935.09     164,626.67    5.4%
15300 Teen Center       15,000      15,000      15,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus      118,300     118,300     119,300.00            .00      -6,000.00       5,000.00   95.8%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,325,000   1,325,000     327,499.97            .00            .00     997,500.03   24.7%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture        2,771,373   2,771,373     704,367.65      78,420.90       1,870.67   2,065,134.68   25.5%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

10/08/2015 08:53    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |SEPTEMBER 2015 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 03
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
60       Intergovernmental                  APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,360,042   1,360,042            .00            .00            .00   1,360,042.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental             1,360,042   1,360,042            .00            .00            .00   1,360,042.00     .0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      161,917     161,917     124,178.13         727.83            .00      37,738.87   76.7%
17010 Additional School Assistance       10,000      10,000            .00            .00            .00      10,000.00     .0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000       4,250.00       2,250.00            .00      -1,250.00  141.7%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account       43,000      43,000            .00            .00            .00      43,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                    217,917     217,917     128,428.13       2,977.83            .00      89,488.87   58.9%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      244,000     244,000            .00            .00            .00     244,000.00     .0%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      255,380     255,380            .00            .00            .00     255,380.00     .0%
18040 Police Station Bond      400,125     400,125            .00            .00            .00     400,125.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                    899,505     899,505            .00            .00            .00     899,505.00     .0%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   59,596,486  59,646,486   9,982,142.67   3,679,436.55     813,223.13  48,851,120.20   18.1%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

10/08/2015 08:56    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |SEPTEMBER 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 03
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   38,824,828  38,824,828  37,993,814.58  37,993,103.60                    831,013.42   97.9% 
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000      -5,892.71      -2,136.17                    -69,107.29    7.9% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       65,000      65,000      18,736.35       1,563.74                     46,263.65   28.8% 
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       13,000      13,000      16,249.80            .00                     -3,249.80  125.0% 
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev       13,000      13,000      19,091.21            .00                     -6,091.21  146.9% 
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      175,000     175,000      31,465.42      31,465.42                    143,534.58   18.0% 
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r            0           0     332,248.00     332,248.00                   -332,248.00  100.0% 
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj            4           4            .00            .00                          4.00     .0% 
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,865,000   2,865,000     817,042.01     272,609.07                  2,047,957.99   28.5% 
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000       3,125.10         216.10                     21,874.90   12.5% 
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane        3,500       3,500            .00            .00                      3,500.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Taxes                        41,709,332  41,709,332  39,225,879.76  38,629,069.76                  2,483,452.24   94.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   41,709,332  41,709,332  39,225,879.76  38,629,069.76                  2,483,452.24

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        9,500       9,500       2,350.00         950.00                      7,150.00   24.7% 
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        3,000       3,000       1,065.00         435.00                      1,935.00   35.5% 
121411 42100  Building Permits      145,000     145,000      52,891.92      26,116.45                     92,108.08   36.5% 
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       34,000      34,000       8,654.74       2,954.64                     25,345.26   25.5% 
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       22,000      22,000       9,127.50       3,420.00                     12,872.50   41.5% 
121411 42103  Zoning Board Fees            0           0          75.00            .00                        -75.00  100.0% 
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,100       1,100         212.50          34.75                        887.50   19.3% 
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,500       2,500          84.00          14.00                      2,416.00    3.4% 
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       50,000      50,000      13,833.00       4,125.40                     36,167.00   27.7% 
121611 42203  General Licenses       21,270      21,270       2,973.00       1,000.00                     18,297.00   14.0% 
121611 42204  Victulars/Innkeepers       18,250      18,250         225.00          75.00                     18,025.00    1.2% 
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       17,400      17,400         400.00          25.00                     17,000.00    2.3% 
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,730       4,730         120.00          16.00                      4,610.00    2.5% 
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0           0          59.97          19.99                        -59.97  100.0% 
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       22,500      22,500      10,558.40       2,815.00                     11,941.60   46.9% 
122121 42400  Fire Permits          500         500            .00            .00                        500.00     .0% 
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600          75.00          45.00                        525.00   12.5% 
123131 42600  Public Works Opening        8,000       8,000       5,030.00       1,350.00                      2,970.00   62.9% 

 
TOTAL Licenses & Fees                 360,350     360,350     107,735.03      43,396.23                    252,614.97   29.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      360,350     360,350     107,735.03      43,396.23                    252,614.97

 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WiP1X6d3aBLtUOmnbaW5fihbUTaixpvjWsN9wQSPGjCTsKUSWT3XLouiQAT3uMTS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=o3kzkd4qAL6LHuEkxxROKN4JwTBMvZ4Cd3aoI302zGBG/KBylBwNMIZz0xq6r2or&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5lI%2B5Wrqr6hmbI8CiVpTC8haSrzVNsxKDFkB3333kyeNBRbalI/drdyWyaMsm2cY&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=JSdBQqzzD6nM9RZ5SYFC2B0kUNer/q0ky%2BkBO/QPiUYllJJt%2B2rm607Lomv39/Ly&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=W5tg4F2aeCzKMdxOmuibp4OuHHRB4hNqVKBZBpiil%2BUJs3Pf2efA%2Bd2SnQO37twj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=m9Zaqhdfbbls/ErUP62t5GzWLTJdqTaGcT%2BU65Yh4ND5dkmieJruPYTmSzsvx2TU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0c%2B%2B14GyK7iyGHKAbXzJcnI6VAiHbhinSP7/LEUDebdSxxWT89IrbUVr/LaBC2ff&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7EYYIpePyGC4T%2ByihvXy9wVtgskmnJVK6n/KL7JEDa86kZV0pY1r%2BeFv4dqUOW7C&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2Bx3TMimjdHeTa%2B0ndVzYIZU8k0XOOResNhg2KC/MvEnSy9St9G9N5WzT/mPPxCFV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=iJHa/AItd/J7BzodBcBAPK7y083%2BFYjoaPCfDJ0woodNXnQ5cmKvEmLmt8LQj8OM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=VbIZUTDhDuGbfTMvyl0UC5gJDQmQNbakXmIUabSuME6q4m5ejo4xX21nalqna8K5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=cdwiCKMgCETnT9WtjPjAF%2BLJsFE3KWLVun5%2Br4SyxfrzkQeYQJcMdsLUJm6aFcDF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hZYB2z%2BW3EbRED2kNVNX86McXOcb/Uy0mPR04ko7a7AzTO5bYk1U6NdKsgc1iFnT&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=RRCboxnviK/lC66xLxpMFiDx41jzHV5SZgDNQeGEJrv/bZL5CdR8CbwRwcZPPHTv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=zM5tt5z2iKu0Z1cruPXnG1RNjaSfcqwawNXjpU5iIj7Qg01EJWG1RV2gOXWQa%2Ben&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7G6rerYMmaqsPFV/t6nE1ra0k3rtkFExglPJO/BrpPbxILrE4qWrExF4emBbk/UR&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=M0p6QgrF%2BvC1ew4/dSB3yccUIWY9evGks3YG1FJo9QCRoPaFMzzOw8uOgmWKh3eL&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hYVXaQkD3r5RGi7UoZXeTPQLTCfZWHZK4wonGAmW6PCbw1smSIwnh5J1PkOZDZSq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=EDTy3eBJwN49A8mwM4NHg0w6ChzwPploG/IPCBK/oAIf7FGbGMz05rHp8nmyGbbJ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4cVhyHoM4v/0dqa1lmISEuxkNrxfOR/xfK3sbODDtqMFcTo6G8QK5zv9mDt1BiJb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nNFxmFw7g4CKc5wlsTUH4U/hyKrJSBFTy2dB39Gy9bV4uPjS6lPzz4b7xSkZSyBh&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=yJYW2Pn1EDE0hhgzKqOXX7NvKJDqUnb3kB6QYNcnbj6PuktSCgsokzXB/BZZ4ZLr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5c37jWyrT3blyyA42I09Y/a03SRDwymEzKJVhLH3Wei3ru3JQv3Njw8hn04GK3Fl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kSBnFQbTTiKHfV8SAJI2DEdBvP%2BpyUuh9/QNAhckIAMGevv%2BFy48nC%2Beu7sdny%2B4&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Fp3EFXBx8Q6HSoFdXkAY%2B5dvJGZlnt/MfMNoBAmnBDomYXOw47H6eC/UthMnfnan&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BbiRNDLgt5u9jjocYl0j0HQPvqvoFNegPv/WjoW8MSrpdmF/PJvbi/i/y4JAX4M3&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=KLLF%2BwZCz6TfTkETe8ka2Om9OqK5jzDuBtyc1C0A65FV9X7oD8B%2B1BPv8qVkaYtU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kNVl7Fl4vYrbyK/CXsQ76QJ%2B7SijLhfMgYQ9GbEUmoBqN6h%2Bsh6KNZ7DaqajOBFw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=q8H2QP7gvHUq/KR6WebREvb8Uvx40Polvqri%2BCi5iifA4T%2BxZ5hQw4VUf/XCuul%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=7TmzBxL92dzkNuflu32ZlZ4pZyWm4DKUvvkQG8us7uB9F4XbwsJFtU%2ByOonVIwlb&


 
 
 

10/08/2015 08:56    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |SEPTEMBER 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 03
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
131122 43505  FD EMPG grant       15,000      15,000            .00            .00                     15,000.00     .0% 
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      195,000     195,000            .00            .00                    195,000.00     .0% 
131142 43104  State General Assista       24,000      24,000         995.69            .00                     23,004.31    4.1% 
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       40,000      40,000            .00            .00                     40,000.00     .0% 
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing    1,088,154   1,088,154     312,813.00      85,868.35                    775,341.00   28.7% 
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,400       1,400            .00            .00                      1,400.00     .0% 
134546 43120  State Education Subsi    9,826,081   9,826,081   2,232,314.49   1,488,209.66                  7,593,766.51   22.7% 

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental            11,189,635  11,189,635   2,546,123.18   1,574,078.01                  8,643,511.82   22.8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   11,189,635  11,189,635   2,546,123.18   1,574,078.01                  8,643,511.82

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       47,000      47,000      13,342.00       4,090.00                     33,658.00   28.4% 
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500         301.00          34.00                      1,199.00   20.1% 
141211 44121  Rental of Property        1,200       1,200         300.00         100.00                        900.00   25.0% 
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0           0         200.17         200.17                       -200.17  100.0% 
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      845,000     845,000     175,710.65      17,124.92                    669,289.35   20.8% 
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire        1,000       1,000         595.76         204.16                        404.24   59.6% 
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,000       3,000         400.00         300.00                      2,600.00   13.3% 
142221 44162  Police Reports        4,500       4,500         928.50         498.50                      3,571.50   20.6% 
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       86,000      86,000            .00            .00                     86,000.00     .0% 
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        3,000       3,000       8,591.00       6,270.00                     -5,591.00  286.4% 
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      143,760     143,760      43,228.59      11,170.18                    100,531.41   30.1% 
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000       5,910.20         972.40                     19,089.80   23.6% 
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      102,000     102,000       6,223.34       6,223.34                     95,776.66    6.1% 

 
TOTAL Charges for services          1,262,960   1,262,960     255,731.21      47,187.67                  1,007,228.79   20.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,262,960   1,262,960     255,731.21      47,187.67                  1,007,228.79

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines       10,000      10,000         225.00          25.00                      9,775.00    2.3% 
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        1,000       1,000            .00            .00                      1,000.00     .0% 
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0           0         400.00            .00                       -400.00  100.0% 
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600         285.00         215.00                        315.00   47.5% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Bdr4TGYU6DSUJ5%2BjzOdf/uGTqajeTxMoQbaq3JvCJilPNxmNwCe2g5Gce6ynA5pY&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wWpKbULNTSpxHvCfjFj5kRT4%2Bo7LIDqTPeQvesmXTd7HoFYLODOYC%2BdHElUuqaNn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dfo0Cikht0lyqgNgLWTL/Z77pCowZMSY4N1Q3TFb8dz2bsiuocy/9PHsk3jN0zNa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=y8Wai1Dly%2BA9/7rY/tQuWysF2lK46ZYV9lDJeo7buirzmwY3BWwcAE9CA7yN%2BgzV&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=hSGBjF%2B4CyixrhcajKPLfvBMmVpEGLuS8f2S02m6NLY/Kfv4N9b7%2BLzqACh9s7Se&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DW5soK9uHuAGU%2BDEakKH1CcNgnwIwtg/aE%2BU7MrHnYRKnlAWgKf6aCsZl%2BL%2BXHwy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rjSaMjszaAq3VM9gf2GxQuAnwEo2h1MIhC23RX5IGTrtFFjENEm96Rka8g6iU%2Bnb&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dLQMwmUCF4gNMyM8YRbcqyB/v2MH8uqMi%2B55RGx87NH1RF47b7Togha121Vj5K5d&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2tk4v3niC4Ze7cS8u814Fb91LSZDygWwpdX6YfbSLxcYl%2B5r70p0R%2Bj1dU%2BKSAh/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=vCywnYbX2YSxCHsg6X9vqitdNRHzv420wEZry93pdHlAo20YHqQDlPGsTHG7zwjF&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=N%2B6ybg2UMLHTJq9aeqGSIk9RKQ8f9rrbDuuvsiOxjDS6bgUrlMyQIuhbAvpXh07/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OGIKo8c79%2BHB6hrF9mvQfsq7bsAHozc05JXcFlULmLuRbFr1AI293EmEmI2lwRjd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XlPXYE1wcciBavNOVbIUVA30W7GD3zd0HglwNKgES7%2Bk98IGxofTbYgdbN%2BByvKA&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GsCoZGeBNRhFs06gXPV9X/0bhvslu7VxYwvnKZsj7A47HXdFk8O1gJWtYtIhPJ5e&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WkkVW6Fa/4f7BwgOb31Zbr/j2mnzu4Ywo9yWmkQLugXGENmVjRAVBK2zR5sLS4Fz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BOvjZnwruyADYCVHBA25Vhnu9qPRQIFZpxxM5TGwFEkC22IrD%2BcSKK598fw5eObs&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=UtM/17SYMYpaVEz0RzNc0meejsmpNMJ5HdKc5k2g3K9xTbrK6NbSSLqrjbxlseR/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TUPaQLbMpT2xBHH%2Bez4324xTOy3fWST33OaQuGwpYUbxMHoTuZ3CM3b%2BS0FmQube&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HmnGovOCwQZVtWZmQiw5pTQx8H2qEB/yGV2nv25buRE37THAjGhERm70e3L9nzSu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=lslirgZJf9ivwvAe2YgrH4TUOvJsf/a89Fp7LCSVh7javQMuqSgbuPTFaKRpa5zc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=GFOL/KreJ3S7shRe1cFVjzS68wzqbqVYWYcQUVcVrllpol5rVVOLLEVYKLCoSabx&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BZMN4bzPCSS/p26slTaeXD1S2Q3a6y46NS3x02tYVR4Z3ithCkQ8paucgQ69mRgs&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1CcE08NJiy6GaLNF1QXlbQy20%2BT5dVpnLZQPg6JwlJcrF0lBpUYKXw0We2jDBAdo&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ClysGkjPBeAkmAntohtDKc%2BBjZUUJqft3txsBf9ny5e8hbajYyTIFyyaJK8tAfw0&


 
 
 

10/08/2015 08:56    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |SEPTEMBER 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 03
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
152221 45101  Parking Tickets       30,000      30,000       6,855.00       1,860.00                     23,145.00   22.9% 
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          100         100          75.00          50.00                         25.00   75.0% 
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          100         100            .00            .00                        100.00     .0% 
152221 45106  Restitution            0           0          37.46          37.46                        -37.46  100.0% 

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties                41,800      41,800       7,877.46       2,187.46                     33,922.54   18.8%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       41,800      41,800       7,877.46       2,187.46                     33,922.54

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned       20,000      20,000       1,707.41         853.73                     18,292.59    8.5% 

 
TOTAL Interest earned                  20,000      20,000       1,707.41         853.73                     18,292.59    8.5%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       20,000      20,000       1,707.41         853.73                     18,292.59

 
70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       94,000      94,000            .00            .00                     94,000.00     .0% 
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000      15,208.50            .00                       -208.50  101.4% 

 
TOTAL Donations                       109,000     109,000      15,208.50            .00                     93,791.50   14.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      109,000     109,000      15,208.50            .00                     93,791.50

 
80 Use of fund balance                
_________________________________________

 
181100 48000  Unapprop General Fund      825,000     875,000            .00            .00                    875,000.00     .0% 
181100 48001  Bal of State Revenue       50,000      50,000            .00            .00                     50,000.00     .0% 
184500 48004  School Balance Forwar    3,067,309   3,067,309            .00            .00                  3,067,309.00     .0% 
184500 48005  Restricted-Sch Bond P      119,800     119,800            .00            .00                    119,800.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Use of fund balance           4,062,109   4,112,109            .00            .00                  4,112,109.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    4,062,109   4,112,109            .00            .00                  4,112,109.00

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        4,000       4,000       2,264.52    -135,233.15                      1,735.48   56.6% 

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=f5R7yISzueLuxDgbwzr/yLuc/EEkILYUqiLk1u039agWPH1BbbC0iGcJX274auNZ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jDnAOnM1m4sL2wzUWPAf1jeUkqtHGhrJyAC43ElRcZx0X7fyM60wq6Y0FOIFCzFa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Jp7SU/Ap56EoqK6QppfvAGW8uXnpw%2BRY5Wrovb9wd/bBpieszG/h5pXSkK3X2jDd&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=N5IA7/7TOuADcGIRUQ39Xo0qqwSTW3DukWoKVEc7B9cTKcn4QrLpLYwYMBirKkHH&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=20MPDiHgzWnajbJoSug9pRQtwLI99nsH7wsO7hlcHf9Iwq0%2B0HRBAZG02QAF4M2t&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nLg4xPVwHaeBRr9Sf8rgTMW9%2BzEGzgYHVzANYe1kbBdiI7HriH4dyMr6A6H7S5cI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jCKkd2YH6XyPehuG%2B1vex/r7vX64J2JJ4jTvUc0pt3PLe7HeqZuS65fKszbf4Vl%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=r76951EP5bIWwOtMYij2za6ULAciBu0oKLYiha5tAPBsZcPUxJICguEak5jx90aC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=J/HA7Bi/qjsPclQMeSHqtSndEfNEph2A%2BSCKFSzg7pyhiVQRk7z42g6nuLcRWZi%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OzAXcUDeqPdfTi8SPkMdEgWzdtsLntNPgfE/h5c9mrNHAklHgZPNHyJz/bUjDDj6&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DsX/p4MHpAguixcBTg0tQ0WXgPKP%2BLBYHSAnbQqNl1TBJL%2BU6PBGMpwBzaOk3heJ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=YYgybwW6ofnXfwZYDGHMbSTHVKYLzXvmCZRBkAi0n%2Bo/e5Rvf4VKaAoracPcex4Z&


 
 
 

10/08/2015 08:56    |Town of Brunswick |P      4
jhenze              |SEPTEMBER 2015 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 03
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
191111 49104  Property & Casualty D            0           0      10,052.00            .00                    -10,052.00  100.0% 
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0           0          28.00           2.00                        -28.00  100.0% 
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0           0       5,563.01            .00                     -5,563.01  100.0% 
191111 49210  Insurance Proceeds            0           0       3,014.00       3,014.00                     -3,014.00  100.0% 
191192 49100  Cable Television      225,000     225,000            .00            .00                    225,000.00     .0% 
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,300       1,300         464.50         166.25                        835.50   35.7% 
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          200         200         210.29          99.29                        -10.29  105.1% 
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous        5,800       5,800      11,332.00      -2,690.00                     -5,532.00  195.4% 
192194 49151  Fire Vehicle Sales            0           0       5,700.00            .00                     -5,700.00  100.0% 
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous       10,000      10,000      14,344.57         333.36                     -4,344.57  143.4% 
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella        2,000       2,000          12.28            .00                      1,987.72     .6% 
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous       93,000      93,000       5,244.34       1,194.71                     87,755.66    5.6% 
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      500,000     500,000            .00            .00                    500,000.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL Other                           841,300     841,300      58,229.51    -133,113.54                    783,070.49    6.9%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      841,300     841,300      58,229.51    -133,113.54                    783,070.49

 
GRAND TOTAL   59,596,486  59,646,486  42,218,492.06  40,163,659.32                 17,427,993.94   70.8%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=fRVXkqW2GFzGUqi/NS1p5F9itaX1z/9cD/0TQ5Qd1n8Fp3tSIGRouPm4FqBMFRHl&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=aF28PbzyUMozTlDG2Wgehdm4rTuGUc6M3YP9db6LRBQcyMCT0YouUmrKik7yfM39&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WLWJcRi7jDdtnJLrkjjyrLgmTKZu80l%2ByBtWloiJE8S1pEKhSM5WpO0z3uax%2B5Ja&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=S4LkcYu0ZcR3ShpJRjlmLAmuZYYF1kJTzlVXaW/Q3I%2BDJuMaFRXTOYLXHxtpRryU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sBtG3NQxZsEcBgWSvCTmKkqrjPimQccKi7CcPApwR4N0Mf6HI610DTqVyj7U1JAY&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PAUXS5wovOOJ9/S8mnNuwTYzoPDVdi43oue6NDy9rKdg4Jvl7S1lVIQcAtiJNoKy&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=K0qOEgER7FSLKujlyw1gltVb7zcabYd56p6j/gllbFuMNRGY/1HH7dLeiDj6jG4L&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=5nPBC%2BESgwo8m3m5HKYRRgzFbsTDy/Vm4c%2BQ9RKXJXYm7DlIv3Exn7Tjkpy4BzCm&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/kWIl8DsTxgK8dqSaWDvxh4jSvpngxJbFMXQBzO7jFw9rzS1y0gM2cLCwMtXCbRz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=XiG7jMK5Qs9gO4Iv9w5nTsXGESjaztSrqFoEzGTiPI8VzCQxdjmByMTRqQa1HxgY&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Myq%2B26pdncXMhBD4qhX4NKJRf5HPjgKWO4ArjS8joLKxfUnXpVca1GO4QIruTv8e&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=63M2DrK3mu7ql9gIeOAF1duVzcxi21OUtjr5OtPiEmT/M5mRPiGm3Z6B2x9atV4O&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=jGxInW8eozz%2BdHW9GJ/Edc0GTAgdcHiKnUP2yJO/jzpScBxTeJVDZTM1kpUySQSA&


 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - D 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 105 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



O:\Council\Memos	to	Council\2015\Memo	Budget	Amendment	100115.docx	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 October	1,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Proposed	Budget	Amendment		
	 Vehicle	and	Equipment	Replacement	Reserves	
	
	
Attached	is	a	proposed	resolution	that	would	amend	the	adopted	2015‐16	budget	to	add	funding	to	
the	Town’s	Vehicle	and	Equipment	Replacement	Reserves.	
	
As	you	may	recall,	the	Maine	Public	Employees	Retirement	System	(MainePERS),	recently	returned	
approximately	$136,481	to	the	Town	of	Brunswick.		This	refund	represented	the	remaining	surplus	
the	Town	carried	into	the	consolidated	participating	local	district	(PLD)	plan	when	the	Town	
elected	a	PLD	plan	in	1993.		Prior	to	joining	the	PLD	plan,	municipalities,	including	Brunswick,	were	
treated	as	separate	stand‐alone	plans	for	funding	and	benefits.		In	electing	to	join	the	PLD	plan,	
municipalities	brought	into	that	plan	any	liability	or	surplus	they	had	in	their	stand‐alone	plans.		
Brunswick	had	a	surplus,	however,	it	was	the	position	of	MainePERS	that	it	could	not	return	that	
surplus.		Instead,	it	allowed	Brunswick	to	use	a	portion	of	that	surplus	annually	to	reduce	the	
required	employer	contribution.		MainePERS	recently	changed	its	position	and	refunded	the	
remaining	balance	of	the	surplus.	
	
Brunswick	could	elect	to	continue	to	use	a	portion	of	the	refund	to	offset	employer	costs.		However,	
I	have	recommended,	and	the	Finance	Committee	has	agreed,	to	allocate	these	funds	to	the	vehicle	
reserve	accounts.		In	funding	the	reserves,	we	would	have	funds	available	to	replace	equipment	that	
the	adopted	CIP	recommends,	or	that	we	assumed	would	be	funded	with	bonding.		For	instance,	the	
CIP	recommends	funding	a	sidewalk	tractor	for	the	Parks	and	Recreation	Department	with	bonds.		
Without	sufficient	funding,	we	anticipate	that	we	would	also	need	to	fund	a	replacement	ambulance	
with	a	bond.		
	
If	the	Council	agrees	to	appropriate	the	MainePERS	refund	for	the	vehicle	replacement	accounts,	it	
would	need	to	adopt	the	attached	budget	amendment.		The	process	for	amending	the	budget	is	
similar	to	the	one	used	to	adopt	the	budget.		It	requires	setting	and	holding	a	public	hearing,	and	a	
vote	on	the	amendment	ten	or	more	days	following	the	public	hearing.	



 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 
 

Resolution Amending the 2015-16 Budget to Appropriate $136,481 for the Purpose of Funding the 
Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) adopted a budget for the 2015-16 fiscal year (the 
“Budget”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (the “Town”) adopted a Capital Improvement Plan for the 2016-
2021 fiscal years (the “CIP”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CIP includes Vehicle & Equipment Reserve funding as well as certain individual 
vehicle and equipment items to be funded individually; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the CIP policy, replacement vehicles with a life expectancy of 
less than 15 years and a cost less than $325,000 should be funded through the Vehicle & Equipment 
Reserve Funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to insufficient balances in the Vehicle & Equipment Reserve Funds, the CIP includes 
certain vehicle and equipment items with a cost less than $325,000 to be funded through the issuance of 
bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, in August, 2015 the Town received $136,481 from MainePERS in payment of the Town’s 
Individual Unpooled Unfunded Actuarial Asset (IUUAA) balance as of June 30, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager has determined that a suitable use for the $136,481 IUUAA funds is to 
be appropriated for the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 504 of the Charter of the Town of Brunswick provides a method for amending the 
Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has held a public hearing on the proposed amendments to the Budget  at 
least ten days prior to the adoption of this resolution; 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION IS ADOPTED: 
 
The 2015-16 Budget is amended to appropriate a sum of one hundred and thirty-six thousand, four 
hundred and eighty-one dollars ($136,481) for the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Funds.  

 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council: October 5, 2015 
Public Hearing:     
Adopted by Town Council:  
 



 
 

 
ITEM 100 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Perreault,	Chair	
	 Kathy	Wilson	
	 Daniel	Harris	
	
DATE:	 September	22,	2015	
	
SUBJECT:	 Social	Service	Committee	
	
	
The	Social	Services	Committee	is	pleased	to	present	for	the	Town	Council’s	consideration,	the	
attached	draft	of	a	social	service	agency	funding	policy	and	a	draft	application	form.		The	Committee	
began	its	work	in	mid‐July	and	completed	it	on	September	22nd.		Our	work	included	the	review	of	a	
number	of	policies	and	applications	utilized	by	several	communities	throughout	the	state.		We	also	
reviewed	Brunswick’s	previous	applications	and	funding	history.		As	has	been	reported,	Brunswick	
discontinued	making	grants	to	social	service	agencies	beginning	with	the	2007‐08	municipal	
budget.	
	
In	developing	this	policy,	the	Committee	chose	to	recommend	limiting	grant	funds	to	agencies	that	
provide	food,	clothing,	and	shelter.		Further	the	Committee	recommends	that	in	the	year	the	policy	
is	implemented,	funding	be	limited,	in	total,	to	$20,000.		The	Committee	understands	this	will	
provide	a	limited	amount	of	funds	to	a	limited	number	of	agencies.		Given	the	difficult	budgets	the	
Town	has	experienced,	and	expects	to	experience	in	the	foreseeable	future,	the	Committee	believes	
this	modest	approach	is	a	prudent	first	step.	
	
The	Committee	wishes	to	thank	Fran	Smith	for	her	assistance.		We	look	forward	to	discussing	our	
recommendations	with	the	Town	Council.	



 

	 	
	 Page	1	of	4	
	
O:\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT.docx	 	 Printed	on

Town	of	Brunswick	
Social	Services	Funding	Policy	

	
	
Purpose	of	this	Policy	
	
The	purpose	of	this	policy	is	to	establish	guidelines	to	be	used	by	the	Town	Council	in	the	review	of	
grant	funding	requests	from	non‐governmental	charitable	organizations.	
	
Background		
	
The	Town	of	Brunswick	provides	many	services	to	its	inhabitants	in	the	course	of	fulfilling	its	
responsibilities	as	a	municipality.		Certain	non‐governmental	charitable	organizations	provide	
services	to	members	of	the	public,	some	of	which	are	similar	to	the	services	that	the	Town	of	
Brunswick	could	provide	in	accordance	with	Maine	law.		The	Town	of	Brunswick,	acting	through	
the	Brunswick	Town	Council,	establishes	the	following	policy	under	which	the	Town	might	provide	
funds	to	certain	non‐governmental	charitable	organizations:	
	
Social	Services	Committee	
	

Committee	Composition:		The	committee	shall	consist	of	five	(5)	members.		Three	(3)	shall	be	
Town	Councilors,	appointed	for	annual	terms.		Two	shall	be	(2)	citizen	members	appointed	to	
two‐year	staggered	terms.	
	
Committee	Responsibilities:		The	committee	has	the	following	responsibilities:	
	
 administer	this	policy	and	make	recommendations	regarding	amendments	to	the	policy;	
 develop	and	administer	any	procedures	consistent	with	this	policy	as	necessary	to	meet	

the	goals	of	this	policy;	
 receive	and	review	funding	requests	made	pursuant	to	this	policy;	
 recommend	grant	amounts	to	be	awarded	to	eligible	organizations.	

	
Definitions	
	

Charitable	Organization:		A	non‐government,	non‐profit	organization,	determined	to	be	tax‐
exempt	by	the	Internal	Revenue	Service	under	section	501	(c)(3)	of	the	United	States	Internal	
Revenue	Code,	that	provides	goods	and	services	at	low	cost	or	no	cost	to	Recipients	(as	defined	
herein).	
	
Distributions:	Goods	and	services	which	a	Charitable	Organization	provides	to	Recipients.	
	
Recipient:	A	natural	person	who	receives	goods	and	services	from	a	Charitable	Organization.	
	
Year:	A	Charitable	Organization’s	fiscal	year.	
	

Eligibility	
	
To	apply	for	and	receive	funding	from	the	Town,	a	Charitable	Organization	must	meet	the	definition	
as	defined	herein	and	must	at	all	times	be	qualified	as	a	501(c)(3)	organization	under	the	United	



 

	 	
	 Page	2	of	4	
	
O:\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT.docx	 	 Printed	on

States	Internal	Revenue	Code,	and	must	provide	the	Town	with	proof	of	such	qualification	with	
each	application	to	the	Town	for	grant	funds.		Loss	of	eligibility	will	render	an	applicant	ineligible	
for	funding	and	from	receiving	grant	award	payments.	
	
Further,	in	order	to	apply	for	and	receive	funding,	a	Charitable	Organization	must	demonstrate	to	
the	satisfaction	of	the	Social	Services	Committee	that	in	each	Year:	
	

 Distributions	made	by	the	Charitable	Organization	shall	be	in	the	form	of	food,	clothing,	
shelter,	or	a	combination	thereof.		

	
 At	least	seventy‐five	percent	(75%)	of	the	Charitable	Organization’s	Recipients	shall	be	

residents	of	the	Town	of	Brunswick.	
	

 At	least	seventy‐five	percent	(75%)	of	the	Charitable	Organization’s	budget	shall	be	
comprised	of	Distributions	to	Recipients.	

	
A	Charitable	Organization	shall	not	be	controlled	by	or	otherwise	affiliated	with	any	religious	
organization.		However,	having	an	office	in	facilities	owned	or	occupied	by	a	religious	organization	
shall	not,	in	and	of	itself,	be	disqualifying.	
	
A	Charitable	Organization	shall	not	discriminate	in	any	way	either	for	or	against	any	Recipient	due	
to	the	race,	creed,	color,	gender,	national	origin,	or	sexual	orientation	of	that	Recipient.		
	
The	Social	Services	Committee	shall	make	all	determinations	regarding	an	applicant’s	eligibility	to	
and	the	Committee’s	determination	shall	be	final.	
	
Applications	
	
A	Charitable	Organization	must	submit	a	timely	application	deemed	complete	by	the	Social	Services	
Committee.		A	complete	application	shall	include	the	prescribed	form	of	application	as	well	as	all	
additional	submissions	required	by	this	policy.		The	application	must	be	certified	by	the	Charitable	
Organization’s	chief	executive	to	be	true	and	complete.		Further,	the	applicant	statement	shall	
include	an	agreement	to	fully	indemnify	and	defend	the	Town	against	any	liability	that	might	arise	
out	of	the	Charitable	Organization’s	activities.		The	application	shall	be	accompanied	by	the	
Charitable	Organization’s:	
	

 Articles	of	Incorporation	
 By‐Laws	
 List	of	Board	Member	and	Officers	
 Audited	Financial	Statements	(most	recent	3	years)	
 Federal	Income	Tax	Returns	(most	recent	three	years)	
 An	Annual	Budget	
 Property	Tax	Exemption	Certification	(if	applicable)	
 Certificate	of	Insurance	(general	liability	minimum	of	$1,000,000)	

	
All	applications	for	funding	must	be	received	by	the	Town	by	the	date	prescribed	by	this	policy	and	
deemed	to	be	complete	the	Social	Services	Committee.		Late	or	incomplete	applications	will	not	be	



 

	 	
	 Page	3	of	4	
	
O:\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT.docx	 	 Printed	on

considered	and	the	applicant	will	be	deemed	ineligible	for	funding.		The	Social	Services	Committee’s	
determination	of	an	application’s	completeness	shall	be	final.	
	
Applicants	should	be	aware	that	documents	submitted	to	the	Town	of	Brunswick	shall	be	deemed	
public	documents	under	Maine’s	Freedom	of	Access	Act	and	shall	be	available	for	public	inspection	
and	copying.		It	shall	not	submit	any	materials	that	could	identify,	or	lead	to	the	identification	of,	
any	individual	that	applied	for	or	received	assistance	from	the	Charitable	Organization.	
	
Awards	
	
The	Social	Services	Committee	shall	recommend	the	total	amount	of	grant	funding	to	be	included	in	
the	Town’s	annual	budget	and	make	funding	level	recommendations	for	each	applicant,	including	
any	recommendation	that	an	organization	not	be	funded.		These	recommendations	shall	not	
prevent	individual	Councilors	from	making	his	or	her	own	recommendations	during	budget	
deliberations.		However,	the	Council	will	not	entertain	funding	proposals	from	Charitable	
Organizations	that	did	not	submit	a	complete	and	timely	application	under	this	policy.	
Grant	awards	to	a	Charitable	Organization	shall	be	determined	in	the	deliberation	and	approval	of	
the	Town’s	annual	budget.		The	amount	of	funds,	if	any,	to	be	disbursed	shall	be	at	the	sole	
discretion	of	the	Town	Council.	
	
The	Town	Council	shall	not	be	obligated	to	disburse	all	funds	made	available	in	the	adopted	budget.	
The	Town	Council	may,	at	any	time,	in	the	sole	exercise	of	its	discretion,	remove	in	whole	or	in	part	
funds	that	may	have	been	previously	approved	as	to	any	Charitable	Organization.		Funding	may	be	
withdrawn	due	to	budgetary	constraints,	failure	to	maintain	eligibility,	or	for	any	other	reason	the	
Town	Council	deems	appropriate.	
	
Grant	payments	to	Charitable	Organizations	shall	be	made	in	two	equal	semi‐annual	payments.	
The	Town	of	Brunswick	may	suspend	funding,	including	any	unexpended	commitments,	to	any	
Charitable	Organization	that	loses	its	eligibility	under	this	policy.		Further,	the	Town	may,	at	its	
discretion,	seek	to	recover	funds	granted	to	an	organization	deemed	ineligible.	
	
The	Social	Services	Committee,	in	determining	its	level	of	recommended	support	for	a	Charitable	
Organization,	shall	consider	the	value	of	all	property	tax	exemptions	the	Town	has	granted	to	that	
organization.	
	
Calendar	
	
Activity	 Date
	
Appointment	of	Social	Services	Committee July	or	August
Social	Services		Committee	Consults	Town	Manager	on	Funding	(in	total) November
Social	Services	Committee	Recommended	Funding	Levels	(in	total) December	
Application	Period	Opens	 January	1
Application	Period	Closes	 January	31
Social	Services	Committee	Reviews	Applications February
Social	Services	Committee	Recommendation	to	Town	Council March	1
	

	



 

	 	
	 Page	4	of	4	
	
O:\Social	Service	Task	Force\Brunswick	Social	Services	Policy	DRAFT.docx	 	 Printed	on

Prior	to,	or	at,	the	Town	Council’s	first	meeting	in	December,	the	Social	Services	Committee,	after	
consultation	with	the	Town	Manager,	shall	recommend	to	the	Town	Council	the	aggregate	amount	
of	all	funds	available	for	disbursement	to	all	Charitable	Organizations	in	the	upcoming	fiscal	year	of	
the	Town.		During	the	first	year	following	the	adoption	of	this	policy,	the	total	amount	to	be	
distributed	shall	not	exceed	$20,000.	



 

O:\Social Service Task Force\Brunswick Application DRAFT.docx  Print Date:  10/1/2015 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK 
FY 2016-17 

SOCIAL SERVICE FUNDING REQUEST 
 

APPLICATION 
 
Please address the following areas as completely as possible to ensure the Town Council will 
have all the data necessary to evaluate your request for funds.  Please be advised that the Town’s 
fiscal year runs 7/01/16 through 6/30/17. 
 
 
AGENCY: 
 
Agency Name: ___________________________________________  
 
Contact Name: ___________________________________________  
 
Address:  ___________________________________________  
 
Address:  ___________________________________________ 
 
Telephone:  ___________________________________________ 
 
E-Mail:  ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Is the Agency a 501 (c)(3) under the Internal Revenue Code?   Yes______  No ______ 
 
 
CLIENTELE: 
 
Geographic Area Served:    _________________________________  
 
Total Number Clients Served:   _________________________________  
 
Total Clients Served from Brunswick:  _________________________________ 
 
Ratio (%) Brunswick Client to Total:  _________________________________  
 
Client Eligibility Criteria:    _________________________________  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Date Established:  _________________ 
 



 

O:\Social Service Task Force\Brunswick Application DRAFT.docx  Print Date:  10/1/2015 

Statement of Purpose: 
 
 
 
 
Services/Program (Mandated? Voluntary?): 
 
 
Percentage of Distributions in the form of:  
 
Food:_______  Clothing:_______  Shelter: _______  Other: ________  TOTAL::  ________ 
 
 
Geographic Area Served ((Mandated? Voluntary?): 
 
 
 
Staff (Full time Equivalent (FTE), Full-time, Part-time, Volunteers): 
 
 
 
Relationship to Other Agencies: 
 
 
 
BUDGET INFORMATION 
 

 
Funds Requested from Brunswick last year:   ____________________ 
 
Current Total Annual Budget:      ____________________ 
 
Funds Granted by Brunswick FY (last year):    ____________________ 
 
Funds Requested from Brunswick FY (last year):   ____________________ 
 
Current FY Budget Compared to Previous Year (=/-%): ____________________ 
 
Ratio of Adm. Costs to Total Budget (%):    ____________________ 
 
Total Expenses for Brunswick Clients Last FY:    ____________________ 
 
% Expenses for Brunswick Clients Last FY:    ____________________ 
 
Expenses per Brunswick Client Last FY:    ____________________ 
  



 

O:\Social Service Task Force\Brunswick Application DRAFT.docx  Print Date:  10/1/2015 

AGENCY BUDGET 
 

 
 
 

At least seventy-five percent (75%) of the budgeted uses 
shall be in the form of distributions to recipients. 

 
 
  

Source of Funds Last Year Current Year % of Total

Federal 

State

County

Municpal (all)

Gifts

Self Generated

Investment Earnings

Other

Total Sources

Use of Funds Last Year Current Year % of Total

Distribution to Clients

Other Distributions

Administrative

Overhead

Other

Total Uses

Fund Balance Beginning

Fund Balance Ending



 

O:\Social Service Task Force\Brunswick Application DRAFT.docx  Print Date:  10/1/2015 

Other Information: 
 
Provide any other information that will help explain and justify your request: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agency Certification: 
 
On behalf of the applicant, I certify the information contained herein to be true and complete.  
Further, if awarded funding, the applicant agrees to fully indemnify and defend the Town against 
any liability that might arise out of the applicant’s activities. 
 
Name:   ________________________________________ 
 
Title:   ________________________________________ 
 
Signature:  ________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Please attach the following documents: 
 

 Articles of Incorporation 
 By-Laws 
 List of Board Member and Officers 
 Audited Financial Statements (most recent 3 years) 
 Federal Income Tax Returns (most recent three years) 
 An Annual Budget 
 Property Tax Exemption Certification (if applicable) 
 Certificate of Insurance (general liability minimum of $1,000,000) 

 
 

***  An Application is NOT complete without these attachments  *** 



 

 

 
Draft 

Social Services Policy Task Force 
(Council Subcommittee) 

Meeting – September 22, 2015 
6:00 P.M. 

Room 117 – Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Minutes 

 
Present: Committee members: Councilor Perreault, Councilor Harris, and Councilor K. 

Wilson 
Staff:  John Eldridge, Town Manager, and Fran Smith, Town Clerk 
Others:  Councilor Watson 

 
 
Item 1 – Discussion of Draft Policy 
 
The Town Manager presented a revised draft policy.  The committee and staff discussed the draft.   
 
 
The Committee made changes to the draft language and made a motion to approve it as amendment.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by Fran Smith. 



 
Intentionally left blank 



 
 

 
ITEM 106 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 

1 

 

  

Bring Your Own Bag (BYOB) – MidCoast 

Briefing Packet for Bag Fee & Polystyrene 

Ordinances 

 
October 2015 

 

 

Table of Contents 

 
 
Bring Your Own Bag – MidCoast  
 Proposal…………………….……………………………………………………………………………….………………… 2 

About our Group………………………………………………….……………………………………………….……… 2 
Website……………………………………………………………….……………………………….…………………….… 2 
Petition Signatures ..…………………………….…………….…………………………………………….……….…. 2 
Business Supporters …………………………………………….…………………………..……………...……….… 2 

 
List of Outreach Activities  
 Booth, Networking, Presentations…………………………………….…..…………………….…..….….…… 3 
 Media Publicity ………………..………………………………………………………….….……….…..…..…………. 3 
 
Plastic Waste in the Environment…………………………………………………………..…………..….…………..…… 4 
 
Bag Fees 

Comparison of Bag Fee Ordinances………………………………………….……………..….…………..…… 5 
 Independent Assessment of DC’s Experience with 5-cent Bag Fee.………………..…….…….. 6 

Portland’s Experience with 5-cent Bag Fee…………………………………………………………………..6 
 Resident Reaction to our Bag Fee Proposal………………………….…….………………..……….…….. 7 

Business Reaction to our Bag Fee Proposal……………….…………………………..…….……….…….. 8 
 
Styrofoam 

Comparison of Polystyrene Foam Ordinances……………………..……….…….……………….…….…  9  
 Resident and Business Reaction to our Styrofoam Proposal…………….…..…………………….. 9 
 
 

  



 

2 

 

 

Our Ordinances Proposal: 
 

- A 5-cent fee on single-use, carry-out plastic and paper 
bags at all retail stores in Brunswick/Topsham, 
including but not limited to grocery stores, pharmacies 
and convenience stores, and 
 
- A ban on polystyrene foam (“Styrofoam”) containers, 
such that no restaurant, store or other shop in 
Brunswick/Topsham may provide customers with 
Styrofoam containers for any food or beverage. 
 
These have been unanimously endorsed by Brunswick’s 
Recycling & Sustainability Committee 
 

About our Group: 
 

Bring Your Own Bag – MidCoast is a group of about 17 
Brunswick and Topsham residents.  We have been meeting monthly since January 2015 and are focused 
on both educating the community about the problem of plastics in the environment and on passing 
town ordinances that will limit the use of single-use disposable bags and ban Styrofoam food containers. 
 
We have talked to over 70 local businesses in Brunswick to get their perspectives and are a member of 
the Brunswick Downtown Association and Southern MidCoast Chamber of Commerce. 
 
We have reached out to area residents through our BYOB educational booth, which has been set up at 
over 2 dozen farmers markets, the Brunswick post office, the Wednesday night outdoor summer 
concerts, the Peace Fair, the monthly Art Walk, Maine Street, Tontine Mall, etc. 
 

Visit our website:  http://www.BringYourOwnBag.info  
 

Number of petition signers as of 10/2/2015:  Over 1,000 from Brunswick, Topsham and Harpswell 
 
Business supporters: 

Aki Sushi and Hibachi 
Big Top Deli 
Bombay Mahal 
Broadway Deli 
Captain Mike’s Family Restaurant 
Elegance Interiors 
Fat Boys 
Gelato Fiasco 
The Great Impasta 
Goodwill Industries of Northern New England  
Gulf of Maine 
Henry and Marty Restaurant 

     

Icon Contemporary Art  
Lamey Wellehan Shoes 
Lemongrass Vietnamese Restaurant 
Morning Glory Natural Foods 
The Music Center 
Natural Resources Council of Maine (NRCM) 
Pedro O’Haras 
Saltwater Financial, LLC 
Sierra Club of Maine 
Timeless Cottage 
Wilbur’s of Maine Chocolate Confections 
Wild Oats Bakery & Café 
 

http://www.bringyourownbag.info/


 

 

3 

 

Bring Your Own Bag - MidCoast Outreach Activities in Brunswick* 

 
1. BYOB Presentation:  Brunswick Recycling & Sustainability Committee, Thurs, March 26 

2. Visited all businesses on Maine Street – June & July 

3. Booth: Wild Oats at Tontine Mall – Fri, May 22 

4. Booth: “Healthy Oceans, Healthy Mainers” event at Unitarian Universalist – Fri, June 5 

5. Booth: Maine Street (Morning Glory) –Sat,  June 13 

6. Booth: Farmer’s Market– Fri, June 19 

7. Booth: BDA Concert – Wed, June 24 

8. Booth: Farmer’s Market – Fri, June 26 

9. Booth: Brunswick Post Office – Fri, July 24 

10. MidCoast Chamber of Commerce networking event at The Daniel– Wed, July 22 

11. Booth: BDA Concert – Wed, July 29 

12. Booth: Peace Fair – Sat, Aug. 1 

13. Outreach to businesses in Cook’s Corner, Old Bath Rd – July & August 

14. MidCoast Chamber Networking Event 12 x 12 luncheon– Tues, Aug 4 

15. Booth: Fri, Aug 14 5:30 – 7:30 pm, Maine Street (Art Walk)   

16. Booth: Mon, Aug 17, 11:00 am – 1:30 pm, Brunswick Post Office 

17. MidCoast Chamber Networking at Thornton Oaks – Tues, Aug 18 

18. Meeting with Rick Wilson at Brunswick H.S. to discuss ways to reach H.S. community 

19. Booth: Fri, Sept. 4, 10:30 – 1:00, Tontine mall 

20. Presentation to Brunswick Recycling & Sustainability Committee, Sept. 24, 7:30 pm 

21. First Parish Church BYOB booth: Sept 27, 11 am – 1 pm 

22. Booth at Bowdoin  College: Connecting Racism, Climate Change & Social Justice Teach-In, Thurs. Oct 1 

23. Booth: Maine Street –Fri,  Oct. 2, 10 am – 12 pm 

24. BYOB Presentation: The Highlands – Tues, Oct 6 at  2 pm 

25. BYOB Presentation: Thornton Oaks –  Fri, Oct 9 at 2 pm 

26. Sierra Club Climate Action Team Bag Ordinance Training for other towns – Dec. 12 
* Booth refers to our  educational booth where we talked to residents about plastic  waste in the environment and 

need for the ordinances 

 

List of publicity 
1. Times Record – 4/24/2015 “Bag Fee Eyed for Brunswick, Topsham, ” p. 1 

http://www.timesrecord.com/news/2015-04-24/  
2. Coastal Journal – 4/30/2015 “The Push Against Plastic: MidCoast Communities Consider Fees on       

Plastic Bags,” p. 1, http://digital.olivesoftware.com/Olive/ODE/CoastalJournal/ ( Go to Back Issues) 
3. Coastal Journal – 7/23/2015, “Climate Action Teams Deliver Solar – and People – Power,” p. 6 

http://digital.olivesoftware.com/Olive/ODE/CoastalJournal/ ( Go to Back Issues) 
4. Times Record – 8/3/2015, “Peace Fair Advocate for the Environment, Palestine,” 

http://www.timesrecord.com/node/822022?pk_campaign=Newsletter  
5. Maine Sunday Telegram – 8/30/2015, “Austin’s plight doesn’t reflect Maine’s handling of plastic 

bags.”  Another View column, written by Marcia Harrington, BYOB co-founder. 
http://www.pressherald.com/2015/08/30/another-view-writer-lets-texas-citys-experience-color-
views-on-plastic-bag-rules/  

6. Maine Sunday Telegram – 10/11/2015, “Plastic bag bans and fees catching on in Maine.”  Source S1. 
http://www.pressherald.com/2015/10/11/as-portland-goes-so-goes-maine/   

7. MWCME  900 AM Radio interview with BYOB Co-founders– Taped Aug 30; broadcast TBD.

http://www.timesrecord.com/news/2015-04-24/
http://digital.olivesoftware.com/Olive/ODE/CoastalJournal/
http://digital.olivesoftware.com/Olive/ODE/CoastalJournal/
http://www.timesrecord.com/node/822022?pk_campaign=Newsletter
http://www.pressherald.com/2015/08/30/another-view-writer-lets-texas-citys-experience-color-views-on-plastic-bag-rules/
http://www.pressherald.com/2015/08/30/another-view-writer-lets-texas-citys-experience-color-views-on-plastic-bag-rules/
http://www.pressherald.com/2015/10/11/as-portland-goes-so-goes-maine/


 

 

4 

 

    PLASTIC WASTE IN THE ENVIRONMENT 

 

 
There are 8 million tons of plastic waste getting into oceans each year, according to the                 
New York Times 2/13/15.  Much of the plastic litter is from single-use, disposable items like 
plastic bags and Styrofoam cups. 
 
On average, Americans use 78 Styrofoam cups and 300 plastic bags per person each year. 
Lightweight by nature, these Styrofoam items and plastic bags are easily picked up by the wind 
where they get blown into the landscape, from where they travel to lakes, rivers and, 
ultimately, the ocean.   
 
Plastics in the ocean is a huge problem.  There are no less than 5 giant gyres (or “garbage 
patches”) of swirling plastic soup, with trillions of tiny and teeny-tiny “microplastics.”  Large 
numbers of sea turtles, fish and other wildlife are perishing after mistaking the microplastics for 
food.  These microplastics have made their way into mussels, clams, wild and farmed fish—all 
part of the human food chain. 
 

  
 
Because of its durability, plastic breaks apart but never biodegrades. While some types of 
plastic are successfully recycled, the recycling of plastic bags and Styrofoam is problematic.  
Because of their bulk, it generally takes more money to ship them than their value as a 
commodity.   
 
For this reason, more than 150 communities throughout the United States and  22 countries 
have passed laws limiting access to plastic bags and/or Styrofoam. 
 
For more information about plastics in the ocean, visit our website (www.BringYourOwnBag.info) 
or visit the 5 Gyres Institute (http://www.5gyres.org/ ) 

 
    

  

http://www.bringyourownbag.info/
http://www.5gyres.org/


 

 

5 

 

 Brunswick Town Council ordinances cosponsors:  Steve Walker and Kathy Wilson 

 

A) FIVE-CENT BAG FEE ORDINANCE 

 

Comparison of Bag Fee Ordinances 

 
Our proposal would be similar to Portland and South Portland’s EXCEPT that it would include 
ALL retail stores.  This is what Washington DC and Montgomery County, MD have done. 

 
The rationale for including all retail stores is that it is fairer to merchants.  i.e. Why should a candy 

store have to charge for a bag when the t-shirt seller does not have to? 
 

DISPOSABLE 
BAG FEE 

Brunswick, ME proposal 
Portland, ME  & 

South Portland, ME 
ordinance 

Montgomery Co., MD 
ordinance 

Fee for carryout bags 5-cents 5-cents 5-cents 

Affected establishments 
All Retail 

All Retail with > 2% food 
sales 

All Retail 

Phase-In Period 
6 months 

9 ½ months (P) 
6 months (SoPo) 

8 months 

Itemize charge-receipt Yes Yes Yes 

Beneficiary of 5-cents The retailer The retailer A stormwater mgmt fund 

Exceptions    

 Once-used bags, such 
as those given out at 
thrift/antique stores 

Exempt 
Exempt because not 2% 

food sales 
Not Exempt 

 Dry cleaners 
Exempt 

Exempt because not 2% 
food sales 

Exempt 

 Restaurants 
Exempt 

Not considered retail under 
“store” definition, so exempt 

Restaurants, delis, etc., are 
exempt if they provide 

paper bags 

 An "occasional retailer" 
that does retail sales <6 
days of year (ex. yard 
sale) 

Exempt 
Exempt because not 2% 

food sales 
Exempt 

 Seasonal stand or street 
fair stall such as a 
farmer’s market 

TBD 
Exempt b/c store is defined 
as “operating year-round” 

Exempt 

 Newspaper bags 
Exempt 

Exempt because not 2% 
food sales 

Exempt 

 

 

Ordinance Sources: 
Portland bag: http://www.portlandmaine.gov/DocumentCenter/Home/View/5874  

Montgomery County bag: http://www6.montgomerycountymd.gov/content/council/pdf/bill/2011/20110503_8-

11A.pdf  

 
   

http://www.portlandmaine.gov/DocumentCenter/Home/View/5874
http://www6.montgomerycountymd.gov/content/council/pdf/bill/2011/20110503_8-11A.pdf
http://www6.montgomerycountymd.gov/content/council/pdf/bill/2011/20110503_8-11A.pdf


 

 

6 

 

One-page Summary of Washington D.C. Experience1   
 

DC implemented a 5-cent tax on all single-use bags in all retail stores (food and non-food alike) in 2010.   
 
In 2013, OpinionWorks Inc. conducted a survey of 600 randomly selected residents and 177 businesses 
that produced the following findings: 

 An overwhelming number of residents (80%) said they have reduced their usage of disposable 

bags since the law went into effect.  

 Two-thirds of residents (67%) are seeing fewer littered plastic bags compared to 3-4 years ago.  

 More than three-quarters of businesses are providing fewer disposable bags to their customers, 

resulting in 50% fewer disposable bags being purchased by businesses compared to before the 

law was implemented.  

 Overall, substantial majorities of both residents and business owners and managers support the 

bag fee personally, with 53% of residents and 63% of businesses supporting the law outright.  

o Only 16% of residents and 8% of businesses said they were bothered by the law, while 

the rest (29%) said they had no feelings either way.  

o Fifty percent of businesses reported that they were saving money as a result of this law, 

and only one business in four said they were experiencing any negative impacts from 

the bag fee.  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------   
How do Brunswick/Topsham compare to DC? 

 Income 
Median HH income in Brunswick: $50,779    (50% are <$50,000) 
Median HH income in Topsham: $59,391       ( 40% are >$50,000) 
Median HH income in Wash DC:  $64,267     (41% are <$50,000) 

o Source: 2008-2012 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates
2 

 
 
Portland’s Experience with the 5-Cent Bag fee (after enactment on 4/15/2015) 

 

The Portland Press Herald first ran a story, “Complaints few as Portland adapts to plastic bag fee 
Some store owners are surprised by how many shoppers remember to bring their reusable bags,” on 
April 21, 2015.  http://www.pressherald.com/2015/04/21/portland-adapts-as-nickel-talks/  
 
 
On Oct 11, 2015, the Press Herald reported that , “Before the ordinance went into effect on April 15, 
about 10 percent of Hannaford customers came in with reusable bags. Now more than 80 percent do.” 
http://www.pressherald.com/2015/10/11/as-portland-goes-so-goes-maine/ 

                                                           
1
 Summarized from full 18 page report, available at: 

http://ddoe.dc.gov/sites/default/files/dc/sites/ddoe/publication/attachments/DDOE%202013%20Bag%20Law%20Su

rvey%20Final%20Report%20%282%29.pdf  Accessed 7/1/2015 
2
 Source: http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml Accessed 11/24/2014. 

http://factfinder2.census.gov/bkmk/table/1.0/en/ACS/12_5YR/S1901/0600000US2300508430
http://www.pressherald.com/2015/04/21/portland-adapts-as-nickel-talks/
http://www.pressherald.com/2015/10/11/as-portland-goes-so-goes-maine/
http://ddoe.dc.gov/sites/default/files/dc/sites/ddoe/publication/attachments/DDOE%202013%20Bag%20Law%20Survey%20Final%20Report%20%282%29.pdf
http://ddoe.dc.gov/sites/default/files/dc/sites/ddoe/publication/attachments/DDOE%202013%20Bag%20Law%20Survey%20Final%20Report%20%282%29.pdf
http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml


  

 

7 

 

    Resident Reaction to 5-Cent Bag fee 

 

At neutral venues like the Brunswick Post Office, we found that 
about 70 percent of residents were supportive of the bag fee 
 
A high number said, “We should just do this!”  Other common 
reactions were “The 5-cent fee will help me remember my bags” 
and even, “I re-use my plastic bags for trashliners/dog poop/cat 
litter but I am willing to pay the 5-cent fee for the privilege.” 
 
The 30% who disagreed usually had one of the following 
concerns.  Our responses are given to each: 

 Isn’t this government telling us what to do? 
 No. Plastic bags cost society about 17 cents 

because of litter, storm sewer clogging and 
jammed recycling equipment.  We are proposing a 
fee that recognizes the fair cost to society. 

 See Letter to Editor -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --  

 How will lower-income people pay for the bag fee? 
 We have raised $2,000 to pay for bags to 

give away to low-income households, 
seniors and developmently disabled adults 

 There is hope Hannaford’s will give out free 
reusable bags for 2 weeks as they did in 
Portland 

 What is wrong with the current system of recycling 
plastic bags at the grocery store? 
 Less than 12% get recycled nationally 
 Plastic bags are costly to society 

 What if I need the bags for cat litter, dog clean-up or 
lining my trashcans at home? 
 There are alternatives such as reusing bread bags, 

re-using trashliners each week, composting cat 
litter 

 This bill doesn’t prevent anyone from buying bags 
at the store for this purpose 

 Won’t this hurt small businesses? 
 No because they keep the 5-cent fee 

 Why are we including paper bags? 
 Because paper bags take more energy, and thus 

greenhouse gases, to manufacture and ship 

Portland Press Herald Letter-to-
Editor.  Sept. 28, 2015 
 
Re: “Letter to the editor: Bans keep 
chipping away at our freedoms” 
(Sept. 21): Portland’s 5-cent fee on 
plastic bags is not an infringement 
on your freedom any more than 
speed limits or taxes on cigarettes 
are. Free plastic bags are not a right, 
they are an entitlement, so calm 
down and stop being so hyperbolic 
about it. You can still have your bag 
– you just need to pay 5 cents for it. 
 
If you don’t want to pay, you can 
find a reusable bag. So, you see, you 
still have your freedoms. Perhaps 
they are slightly more of an 
inconvenience than before, but that 
convenience was creating an 
inconvenience for the rest of us. 
 
Those bags cost us as a society. 
There is the cost of the proper 
disposal of the bags (they usually 
can’t be recycled very efficiently and 
cause problems with waste 
collection) and the cleanup of the 
bags that were not properly 
disposed of. And then there is the 
cost of harming the environment. 
 
The only difference is that those of 
us willing to “inconvenience” 
ourselves by refusing to use plastic 
bags were still having to pay for 
your convenience. And that, sir, was 
not fair, because that was a choice 
that we were not making. 
So be happy that you have choice, 
and remember that all freedom is, is 
the opportunity to make a choice. 
 
Johnny Gagnon 
Portland 



  

 

8 

 

Business Reaction to 5-Cent Bag fee 
 
Noted: Fee would not apply to restaurants, similar to Portland ordinance. 
 
BYOB-MidCoast members visited 42 retailers in Brunswick to get their reactions to the 5-cent 
disposable bag fee.   

 Of the 42 stores we visited, 14 stores would be minimally or not at all affected by the 
bag fee ordinance.   

 Of the 28 stores greatly or somewhat affected, 10 were favorable to the ordinance with 
only 3 opposed.  (The remaining stores were either neutral on the issue or owned by 
outside corporations and unable to take a stand.)  

 So the bottom line is that, among stores that would be affected by the bag fee, 
supporters greatly outweigh opponents.  

 
In the process of talking to these stores we garnered the public support of over 2 dozen area 
businesses, who share our support and commitment to the environment.  They range from Fat 
Boys to Big Top Deli, from Timeless Cottage to The Music Center, and we are grateful to them 
all for their support.  The list of all 25 of these public business supporters can be seen on our 
website: http://bringyourownbag.info/supporting-businesses-and-organizations/  
 
We would especially appreciative of the endorsements and assistance we have gotten from 
Wild Oats Bakery and Café, Morning Glory Natural Foods, Wilbur’s of Maine Chocolate 
Confections, and Goodwill Industries of Northern New England.   
 
The support of Goodwill Industries has been a particularly gratifying because their clients come 
from a wide range of socio-economic backgrounds.  They have two stores in this area – one 
each in Brunswick and Topsham.  If a retailer with this diverse customer base feels they can 
manage a 5-cent bag fee, it should tell us all that this can work in all retail stores! 
 

 

  

http://bringyourownbag.info/supporting-businesses-and-organizations/


  

 

9 

 

POLYSTYRENE BAN ORDINANCE 

 

  Comparison of Polystyrene Foam Ordinances 

 

 Our proposal would be identical to Portland and South Portland’s. 
 

POLYSTYRENE  FOAM  
BAN 

Brunswick, ME proposal 
Portland, ME & South Portland, ME 

ordinance 

Applies to: All food and 
beverages prepared and 
served within City/Town 
limits 

Yes 
Fine < $250 first time 
< $500 2nd time 

Yes 
Fine < $250 first time 
< $500 2nd time 

Affected establishments 
Any person, restaurant, store, shop, 
sales outlet or other establishment, 
that offers prepared food for retail sale. 

Any person, restaurant, store, shop, 
sales outlet or other establishment, 
that offers prepared food for retail sale. 

Exemptions: 
1) Packaging of raw seafood 
2) Retailer can prove hardship 
3) Town Manager claims emergency  

1) Packaging of raw seafood 
2) Retailer can prove hardship 
3) City Manager claims emergency  

Phase-in Period 6 months 
9 ½ months (P) 
6 months (SoPo) 

      Ordinance Sources: 
Portland polystyrene foam: http://www.portlandmaine.gov/DocumentCenter/Home/View/5875  

 

 

 

Resident and Business Reaction to Styrofoam Ban  

 
Residents 

 Almost no residents were opposed to the ban on Styrofoam 
 

Businesses            Figure 1                                                                                     

  
We also paid visits to 32 RESTAURANTS and FAST FOOD PLACES 
to discuss the ban on Styrofoam food and beverage packaging.   

 22 do not use any Styrofoam at all.   

 Of the remaining 10 who do use Styrofoam, only 3 were 
dead set against it, with the rest being either neutral or 
owned by outside corporations. 

 So, like the bag fee, we feel the opposition from food 
establishments will be minimal. 

We distributed price list sheets of alternative types of 
containers to restaurants as seen in Figure 1. 

http://www.portlandmaine.gov/DocumentCenter/Home/View/5875


 
 

 
ITEM 107 
BACK UP MATERIALS 








	ca a yes
	ca a oct 5
	com rep A no
	com rep b Yes
	Com Rep B Multiunit Housing Inspection Letter.MKrevised
	mr a yes
	MR A Town Council Exp Rpt Sept 2015
	Mr A Town Council Rev Rpt Sept 2015
	mr b no
	mr c yes
	mr d notice_20151014125359
	mr d no
	105 yes
	105 a Memo Budget Amendment 100115
	100 yes
	100 Memo Social Services 092215
	106 yes
	106 PDF Packet for Town Councilors 3
	107 yes
	107 ga_20151014125453

